

DRAFT MINUTES

REGULAR MEETING QUEEN CREEK PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION Virtual Meeting December 9, 2020 6:00 PM

1. Call to Order

The meeting was called to order at 6:03 p.m.

2. <u>Roll Call</u>: One or more members of the Commission may participate by telephone.

Alex Matheson	Chair	Present via WebEx
Troy Young	Vice Chair	Present via WebEx
Steve Sossaman	Commissioner	Absent
Lea Spall	Commissioner	Present via WebEx
Matt McWilliams	Commissioner	Present via WebEx
David Gillette	Commissioner	Present via WebEx
Bill Smith	Commissioner	Present via WebEx

3. <u>Public Comment</u>: Members of the public may address the Planning Commission on items not on the printed agenda and during Public Hearings. Please observe the time limit of (3) minutes. Comments may also be sent to via email to PublicComment@queencreek.org by 5:30 p.m. on December 9, 2020 (limited to 500 words – identify your name, address and whether you wish your comment to be read at the meeting or just submitted as part of the written record). Members of the Commission may not discuss, consider, or act on any matter raised during public comment.

A public comment was received from Tyler Vanvleet on an item not on the agenda via email. (See attached).

- **4.** <u>Consent Agenda</u>: Matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion and one vote.
 - A. Discussion and Possible Action on the November 10, 2020 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes.
 - B. Discussion and Possible Action on P20-0164 Maracay at Madera Parcel 1B Residential Design Review.

 Maracay Homes is requesting approval of five (5) new standard plans with three (3) elevations each to be constructed on 91 lots at Parcel 1B of the Madera subdivision, located south of the southeast corner of Signal Butte and Queen Creek Roads. (Steven Ester, Planner II)

Planning & Zoning Regular Meeting Minutes December 9, 2020 Page **2** of **9**

Motion: To approve the Consent Agenda

1st: McWilliams

2nd: Spall

RESULT: Approved (5-0)

Agenda items were taken out of order. Item 8A was discussed after the Consent Agenda.

8. Administrative Items:

A. Discussion and Possible Action on Setting the 2021 Planning Commission Meeting Dates (Erik Swanson, Planning Administrator)

Mr. Swanson presented the tentative schedule for 2021 meeting dates. He asked the commissioners to check the March and July meetings dates for any conflicts and recommended continuing the vote to the January 13 meeting. Mr. Swanson also discussed a possible General Plan Amendment submittal in 2021 and briefly outlined the General Plan Amendment process which requires one alternative meeting location. Mr. Swanson will check if a remote meeting will satisfy these requirements.

MOTION: To continue this item to the January 13, 2021 meeting

1st: Spall 2nd: Gillette

RESULT: Approved (5-0)

Chair Alex Matheson joined the meeting after Item 8A.

5. Public Hearing:

A. Public Hearing and Possible Action on P20-0037 Sossaman Farms West Rezone, a request by W. Ralph Pew (Pew & Lake) to rezone approximately 147 acres from PRC, R1-9, R1-12, R1-35, and R1-43 to R1-5, R1-9, R1-12, Medium Density Residential (MDR), and C-1 for future residential and commercial development located at the southwest corner of Power and Ocotillo roads. (Steven Ester, Planner II)

Planner Steven Ester acknowledged the neighbors and abutting properties owners for their interaction and cooperation throughout the public meeting process.

He introduced the Sossaman Farms West Rezone located at the southwest corners of Power and Ocotillo roads and outlined the surrounding properties and future Sossaman properties to be developed. The 147-acre subject site is currently vacant and the proposed rezone is for a combination of single family residential, multi-family residential and light commercial uses. Mr. Ester noted that it is a conventional rezone with no deviations from the Zoning Ordinance and the request is to establish specified zoning districts.

The General Plan land use designations for the site include commercial, neighborhood and open space. Mr. Ester summarized the surrounding properties which are located in Queen Creek, Town of Gilbert and on County Islands and their respective zoning designations in comparison with the proposed zoning being requested. Mr. Ester explained that one element of the General Plan is Growth Areas which highlight where future development is needed to accommodate growth. Mr. Ester said that Sossaman Farms is a identified as a Growth Area in the General Plan and the applicant provided justification on how the project complies with goals outlined in the General Plan

Mr. Ester reviewed the existing zoning which consists of R1-9, R1-12, R1-35, R1-43 and PRC (the Sonoqui Wash). He said the applicant is proposing to rezone 147 acres to R1-5, R1-9, R1-12, MDR and C-1 and pointed out that the applicant is proposing oversized lots which will factor out to an average of 3.9 dwelling units per acre of overall density across the entire development.

Mr. Ester reviewed the conceptual development plan; primary and secondary entrances; Sonoqui Wash trail improvements; zoning transitions and landscape buffers. He said detailed plans will be submitted with the site plan at a later date.

Mr. Ester discussed the public participation process and outlined the public meetings that were held by the applicant and the Town and the notification process and timeline for each. Some of the concerns raised by residents during this process included 1) MDR density and location; 2) height of the MDR portion (2-3) stories; 3) use of Brooks Farm Rd and its connection to other local streets.

Staff received twenty-one (21) letters of opposition from separate parties. Additionally a petition against the project was also sent to staff by the Brooks Farm Property Owners Association representative with 154 valid addresses our of 214 votes in opposition to the proposal.

Mr. Ester said the next step is the Town Council meeting on January 20, 2021 at 6:30 pm. (The January 6, Town Council Meeting was canceled). Mr. Ester said letters will be sent to all parties with the change of date.

Chair Matheson asked if the 3.9 dwellings per acre include the MDR portion. Mr. Ester replied yes, it is all factored into that calculation

Applicant Ralph Pew presented the Sossaman Farms West Project on behalf of Sossaman Holdings. He voiced respect to surrounding property owners and commented that everyone has been professional and courteous despite disagreement on the project.

Mr. Pew provided an overview of the site and entire Sossaman plan that has been evolving since the 1990's. He provided history on the different phases of development and said everything developed thus far have been quality projects. The next phase of the overall 1100 acres is Sossaman Farms West (17 acres). Mr. Pew said this area is identified as a Growth Area in the Town's General Plan and will be developed with creativity and diversity and include offices, retail, services and agritainment as part of a comprehensive plan. Mr. Pew said Sossoman Farms West is a very unique property that is surrounded by three different jurisdictions and five different land use categories of occupied land including Trilogy, Dorado Estates, and rural community known of Brooks Farms.

Mr. Pew provided a brief history of the property as it relates to the General Plan over the last twenty years. He said since 1999 the property has been designated for MDR and has never been designated for rural or low density. He explained that the General Plan establishes policy and the intentions of the Town and is statutorily required to be updated every 10 years. The General Plan designates uses, density, and land use categories and governs the property even though it may differ from what neighbors might want.

Mr. Pew clarified the Neighborhood category of the General Plan and gave details on the buffering and the use of oversized lots. He explained the good neighbor policy and said if a use from a different town or county was different we have to buffer and be respectful but are not required to have the same zoning as other towns abutting us. He said the Sossaman property has been zoned MDR for 20 years and Commercial for 12 years and the plan complies with the General Plan, Growth Areas and meets buffering, goals and objectives. Mr. Pew outlined how the project satisfies the goals of the Growth Areas and discussed

potential for agritainment opportunities and the completion of trail connections. Sossaman Farms Growth Areas are in urban areas are not located in rural areas.

Mr. Pew gave an overview of the concept plan for development including landscaping, buffering, access points, road improvements and wash improvements to be performed by applicant. He addressed multifamily concerns in relation to surrounding areas and the proposed transitioning. He added that overall all density is consistent with Trilogy. Mr. Pew discussed the 9-acre commercial corner and outlined uses and buffering. He said the neighborhood questions regarding traffic will be handled in final plat.

Commissioner Smith inquired about the south exit on to the existing county road and what is driving the need for the third entry point for this development and the value point. Mr. Pew said that improvement of Brooks Farm Rd is a requirement from the Town and it is a point of safety for access rather than just two entries on major arterials. Additionally, the number of units generally requires a third access and is helpful. He said a traffic impact analysis has been completed and was reviewed by the Town and a final study will also be performed.

Commissioner Gillette thanked all the residents for their input. He commented that he called every apartment complex in a five mile radius and they are all at 96% - 99% occupancy which shows the need for multifamily housing. He inquired about volume of students and impact on the school system. Mr. Pew said the school district has confirmed they have the capacity. He referenced a study by the school district confirming that multifamily yields less students than single family homes. He also said there are more charter schools in the area as well, to accommodate more capacity. Commissioner Gillette asked Mr. Pew to address fears from residents in regards to property values and the impact of MDR. Mr. Pew responded that we found no evidence that new well-managed and designed projects will have a derogatory effect on property values.

Commissioner Spall had a question on the conceptual drawing for multifamily in regards to the three story buildings. Mr. Pew explained that the exhibit is a concept and they will keep the density below 14 units per acre. He said it is not high density and is a mix of buildings that will have a unique design. It could be condos or townhomes but is not known at this time.

Chair Matheson opened the Public Hearing and provided instructions for commenting virtually. The following comments were heard:

- Heather Stevens, 22915 S 180th Street, Gilbert, spoke in opposition to Multi-Density Residential.
 She said it is not compatible with our area and had concerns about protecting the equestrian community. She was opposed to the Brooks Farm Road exit in regards to safety for the children and proximity to schools.
- Tyler Bennett, 22439 S. 178th Place, Maricopa County Island, was concerned about the high density residential in proximity to the trail and an increase in traffic and speeding in the neighborhood with the addition of more residences and no improvements to the road on the County side.
- Shawnalea Shelly, 23015 S 182nd Street, Maricopa County, was concerned about safety on the
 access point at Brooks Farms and cut through traffic and would prefer it to be an emergency egress
 only. She was opposed to MDR and would like less density per acre (2.5 to 3.0 per acre) vs. the
 excessive amount being proposed. She had concerns about an apartment complex without
 supporting services.

- Tracy Warren Hein, 17920 E Sonoqui Blvd, Maricopa County Island, commented that Rancho Jardines is also in proximity to the proposed project. She was opposed to apartments, spot zoning and the lack of gradual step-downs to rural areas. She wants Queen Creek to maintain rural character and was concerned about school overcrowding. She asked the number of houses that would be required to eliminate the Brooks Farm Road entrance.
- Sharon Coffini, 22183 S. 197th Way, Queen Creek, resides in Dorada Estates and her home faces the land. She said she is speaking on behalf of the neighborhood in opposition to multi-density three story apartments. She is requesting apartments be restricted to two stories and also homes bordering Dorada restricted to single level homes on the first row (rather than two stories) in order to be more compatible with surrounding area.
- Brianne Casper, 23005 S 182nd Street, Gilbert (Maricopa County Island), spoke about a survey she
 performed with 428 concerned citizens on a dedicated Facebook page related to the project. All
 comments from the survey opposed MDR. There were 118 votes opposed to the project and 1 yes
 vote for the project.
- Joshua Prickett, 22614 S. 178th Place, Maricopa County Island was opposed to the project and MDR and said it is not compatible with the surrounding areas. He spoke on discrepancies in the MDR density calculations and the process of inaccurate information through the neighborhood meeting process. He spoke about lack of community involvement with the General Plan for nonresidents.
- Jodiann Garrett, 17912 E. Avenida Valley Drive, Maricopa County Island had safety concerns with traffic at Brooks Farm Road. She was opposed to apartments in a rural area. She spoke about the lack of notification for some neighborhood meetings.

Additional public comments were read into the record for those who did not wish to speak. (See attached).

Chair Matheson closed the Public Hearing. Mr. Pew was given the opportunity to address questions and/or comments raised during the Public Hearing. Mr. Pew responded as follows:

- Comparisons to the Trilogy subdivision in Gilbert: Trilogy has almost the exact density as the
 proposed project. Trilogy has high 3.0 4.0 du/acre and our density is 3.9 du/acre over the whole
 project.
- Elimination of arterial corner in C-1 District and MDR: It is zoned in the General Plan as commercial and is a busy arterial corner that will support commercial uses.
- MDR and C-1 is blocking the paid views in Trilogy: We are following the height restrictions for C-1 and MDR. The views promised to homeowners in Trilogy at time of purchase over the Sossaman land is not our responsibility. Property owners could have contacted Mr. Sossaman at time of purchase if they had questions/concerns about his land. We are developing consistent with the Queen Creek General Plan.
- This is a Rural Area: This land ever since it came to Queen Creek has never been designated as rural or designated for low density uses. It has always been designated as medium density and the proposal fits in with that designation.

- Calculation of density: Math is correct for maximum density. What we have done is limited the number of multi-family units to 240 (lower than the number allowed) which causes the differences in the calculations.
- County resident input for Queen Creek General Plan: Maricopa county residents to the south and west are allowed to participate in the General Plan. All comments are considered but the Plan is designed in the best interests of the Town of Queen Creek.
- Restriction request for property abutting Dorado: In regards to the request to restrict the Dorado boundary to single story, we have a 95-foot setback to the nearest house with 30 feet of landscaped trails with bushes and trees in that buffer. Additionally, two story homes are very common and are allowed throughout the Town.
- **Step down density comments:** A majority of comments were from outside of town limits. This is very typical in land use planning when going from a rural neighborhood to an area that is more urbanized. We are providing transitions with two rows and landscape buffers.
- **School drop off location:** Our access point on Brook Farms Rd will mitigate this problem and will create safe traffic movement for the school without the need to go any further west on Brook Farms Road for school purposes.
- Brooks Farm Road comments: This is common throughout the Valley when municipal boundaries
 are adjacent to unincorporated county land. The land in Queen Creek should be developed to
 Queen Creek standards and the owner has the right to use the southern part of his property in
 Queen Creek as a road.
- **Equestrian Community:** The concern that the residents that will occupy the single family homes or the medium density units at Sossaman Farms West will impede the equestrian lifestyle of their neighbors to south is unreasonable.
- MDR Land Use Element: The General Plan recognizes that in the future lifestyles may evolve, and the change in demographics as town matures requires more multi family. We should not assume that multifamily residents would not be amicable to current resident lifestyles.

Commissioner Gillette was in favor of the single family residential but had concerns regarding the lack of clarity on the number of stories that might be constructed on the apartments. He said there was a big difference from one to three stories.

Vice Chair Young recognized the need for rental property and condos and said many rentals are upscale and demand high rents. He trusted that the Sossaman family would choose wisely in regards to the multifamily.

Commissioner Smith asked for clarification on the 3.9 density calculation and if the commercial was included. Mr. Pew explained the calculation and said the 3.9 uses the total 578 units including commercial as a general metric and he agreed that it is actually a little higher if you take out the commercial. Commissioner Smith was in support of the project but thought some requests could be reconsidered such as single story house transition on the first row and some adjustments to the Brooks Road entrances to the site.

Commissioner Spall thanked the residents for their input and said she would be in favor or project without the three stories in MDR. She said the small commercial lot probably won't have three story buildings, therefore she did not see the need for a three story MDR product.

Commissioner McWilliams had concerns regarding the lack of definition in the MDR portion. He said higher density housing is needed but more clarity would be appreciated.

Chair Matheson summarized the Commission's responses and said the major concerns are the MDR and the number of stories along with the buffering with one-story homes on the boundaries. Chair Matheson stated that we are considering a rezone only tonight and there is no specifics presented for MDR at this time and that would come before us later.

Mr. Pew acknowledged the concerns and spoke on behalf of the applicant and stated that after hearing the comments they will agree to single stories in the first row and agree to a two-story MDR product.

Commissioner Smith asked Mr. Pew to still consider a right in/left out transition on the Brooks Road entrance to the site. He said the left out only option would prevent some shortcuts through the neighborhood. Mr. Pew said traffic issues can be resolved and will be discussed with the Town during the process. Commissioner Smith recommended a traffic study and further discussion on Brooks Farm Road to investigate traffic when future plans come through.

Commissioner Gillette asked Mr. Pew if a one-story project might be considered. Mr. Pew replied that we are simply asking for a rezone tonight and we need flexibility to create something very unique and will still have the site plan process to further address this.

MOTION: To approve P20-0037 Sossaman Farms West Rezone with the stipulation that future MDR development is limited to two-story and the first row of structures on outer western and southern perimeter are limited to one-story.

1st: Smith 2nd: Young

AYES: Matheson, Young, Spall, McWilliams, Smith

NAYES: Gillette VOTE: Passes (5-1)

6. Final Action:

A. Discussion and Possible Action on the Annual Organizational Meeting Notification (to set Chair and Vice-Chair appointments for the upcoming year) (Erik Swanson, Planning Administrator)

Chair Matheson asked for nominations for the Chair and Vice Chair positions. The Commission discussed their interest for the upcoming year. Based on the discussion Commissioner McWilliams made a motion.

MOTION: To nominate Troy Young as Chair and David Gillette as Vice-Chair of the Planning & Zoning Commission for 2021.

1st: McWilliams 2nd: Spall

VOTE: Passed (6-0)

Planning & Zoning Regular Meeting Minutes December 9, 2020 Page **8** of **9**

ATTEST:

Joy Maglione, Deputy Town Clerk

n discussion only and no action will be taken. In general
D21 Planning Commission Meeting Dates (Erik Swanson,
d statistics (Erik Swanson, Planning Administrator)
d applications that were completed throughout the year king remotely during Covid-19. He reported an increase ojects that were extended or relaxed to accommodate the commended Town leadership for their ability to adapt the eded during the pandemic.
sion for their ability to deliberate and work through hard ughout the year.
on and staff. The Commission may not deliberate or take matter is properly noticed on the Regular Session agenda.
 Alex Matheson, Vice-Chair

Planning & Zoning Regular Meeting Minutes December 9, 2020 Page **9** of **9**

I, Joy Maglione, do hereby certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief, the foregoing Minutes are a true and correct copy of the Regular Session Minutes of the December 9, 2020 Regular Session of the Queen Creek Planning Commission. I further certify that the meeting was duly called and that a quorum was present.

Passed and approved on:	
THESE ARE DRAFT MINUTES AND ARE NOT APPROVED.	



Sarah Clark <sarah.clark@gueencreek.org>

Queen Creek non-motorized travel problems

'tyler vanvleet' via publiccomment <publiccomment@queencreek.org> Reply-To: tyler vanvleet <tyvanvleet@yahoo.com> To: "publiccomment@queencreek.org" <publiccomment@queencreek.org> Thu, Nov 12, 2020 at 9:19 AM

Hello, just wanted to share some thoughts on the state of non-motorized transportation/recreation in the Queen Creek area at this critical time in the town's buildout. For some time, the agriculture fields and vacant lots within Queen Creek have undergone an accelerated transformation from "open space" to roads and roof tops. While this area has seen tremendous road and business improvements, I believe this important piece of the transportation puzzle has been neglected.

Non-motorized travel/recreation is used by all residents of our community and can vary by mode of travel (foot, bicycle, horseback, skateboard, scooter, etc.) and purpose (Commute to work, school or gym, recreation, exercise or youth play and the general utilitarian travel of residents to a nearby business, park, church or open space), but all rely on the same types of infrastructure.

Residents would like to be able to access the restaurants, grocery stores and other small businesses adjacent to their homes (often times within earshot) without getting in their car or having to walk an extra mile down a busy roadway (motorized travel corridor) designed by a developer at the far end of their housing development. Residents have social interactions outside their housing developments and desire to go for walks, runs or bike rides further then the confines of their neighborhood walls. Additionally, children have many options for school (charter, private and public) and parents would like them to be able to walk or bike there without being forced onto the main motorized arterial roads.

The following are some problems I see facing non-motorized travel in Queen Creek:

Major barriers:

- Railroad lines-only passage at major/unsafe road crossings, long distance between them.
- Block walls- Conglomeration of disjointed small and large scale housing developments with no connectivity to neighboring developments, businesses, areas of interest or recreational infrastructure
- C. Dead ends- Secondary roads that go nowhere or that dead end at the next housing development. Secondary roads are the main arteries for non-motorized travel and are virtually nonexistent (unlike other communities). When they do exist, they are short lived and remain at the whims of the next developer/architect as opposed to a carefully thought out plan by the local town council.
- D. Fragmented sidewalks and non-motorized paths built by homebuilders that end with their property and do not link to the neighboring development, business, recreation area, etc.
- Utility rights of way-gates along canals, powerline corridors or vacant lands between developments

The following ideas are suggestions for helping to make Queen Creek a more livable community.

Safe Non-motorized travel corridors. If the town identified corridors where these are needed than Developers could incorporate them into their designs.

Interconnected Secondary roads. These roads could exist between the major arterial roadways and could be a valuable linkage between separate housing developments. A developer designs a 1x1 or .5x.5 mile neighborhood box, but these "boxes" do not make a livable community.

Linkage between housing developments and business, schools, churches, parks and recreational areas. This could be as simple as a sidewalk, dirt path or break in a wall.

Linkage across rail barriers: Need a pedestrian bridge/tunnel between Ocotillo and Riggs roads (3 mile barrier). East Village Loop or Signal Butte road both dead end.

Untapped open spaces- Utility corridors, canals, dead space between developments, flood corridors and drainage basins. All of these areas, already incorporated into a developers design, could also serve double duty as a travel linkage by requiring the inclusion of a sidewalk or path for public conveyance.

While the various developers build great houses and communities for residents, they cannot be relied on as the sole planner for a functioning community or town. This can only be done through the active planning processes, building and zoning standards and council approval. Many of these small fixes could be implemented at no cost when addressed at the initial planning and approval phase. A simple drainage basin with a sidewalk connecting a neighboring sub division, business or commercially zoned vacant lot could be implemented by the land developer (many have already done so). Development plan approvals could be contingent on realigning roads, sidewalks and paths that meet a communities needs as opposed to the isolated neighborhood box seen through a developers eyes.

I would love to know if anything can be done about this.

Thanks for your time,

Tyler Vanvleet

tyvanvleet@yahoo.com

Regular Session P & Z Meeting - December 9, 2020

Agenda Item 5A – Public Hearing Sossaman Farms West Rezone –20

Comment cards read into the record. (Did not wish to speak)

Comment Cards

- Anne Loyd 18659 E Walnut Rd Queen Creek
 - We are opposed to the zoning change request at Power and Ocotillo Roads. We have lived in Sossaman Estates for over 16 years. Power Road has become extraordinarily busy. The addition of MDR and smaller lots is inconsistent with the surrounding areas.
- Andreaw Ohnstad 19111 E Via de Palmas Queen Creek
 - I am only opposed to the apartment complex. It's been proven that while the owners may benefit, they bring crime and homelessness into neighborhoods, and the value of our homes goes down. I don't mind single-family homes being built, however.
- Sara Hoover 393 E Sourwood Dr Gilbert, Arizona
 - I am opposed to having apartments on the corner of power and ocotillo. I live less than half a mile away from that location and it would dramatically and negatively change the overall experience of this community.
- Christine Phillips 3629 E Rakestraw Ln Gilbert Arizona
 - Please do not build any more new apartment complexes. We are surrounded by new residential development and we don't have the resources or infrastructure to handle yet another large apartment community. Traffic is horrible around here already!
- Tiffany Noetzel 19321 E. Chandler Heights Rd Queen Creek, AZ
 - o Opposed
- Taegen McGowan 19286 E. Carriage Way Queen Creek
 - I am against MDR/apartments in this area. It does not keep with the rural feel that QC has and should remain. Further the traffic in and out of Auxier is already at its peak and becoming a safely issue.
- Carolyn Shelly 23015 S 182ND ST Gilbert Arizona
 - Opposed to auto exit on Brooks Rd.
- Ryan Delnoce 19432 E Camina Plata Queen Creek
 - A monument in downtown Queen Creek talks about the founding fathers including Sossaman wanting to preserve the small town feel and agricultural heritage of this town. What is proposed goes against this vision. Small lots and apartment do not fit the area.
- Michael Zichichi 18529 E Braeburn Ln Queen Creek
 - A zoning change of this nature should NOT be approved! Appartments at this location are not consistent with the character and nature of the surrounding community. Further, the surrounding community and town residents do not want MDR here.

- Sue Greco 5088 S Wade Dr Gilbert
 - I do not believe the area is appropriate for apartments! The zoning should remain as is! We are taking on enough traffic and growth with the new park and growth of new homes. Apartments will also bring down property values and over-crowed schools
- Anne Loyd 18659 E Walnut Rd Queen Creek
 - We are opposed to the zoning change request at Power and Ocotillo Roads. We have lived in Sossaman Estates for over 16 years. Power Road has become extraordinarily busy. The addition of MDR and smaller lots is inconsistent with the surrounding areas.
- Andrew Cox 19422 E Camina Plata Queen Creek
 - o Rezoning isn't consistent with established neighborhoods
- Linda Day Owens 17694 E Colt Ct
 - I am opposed to apartments and small lot housing proposed for Power & Ocotillo and potentially at the west side of Recker on the south side of Ocotillo. It will cause too great an impact on our traffic flow.
- Jennifer Flake 22505 S 179th Way Gilbert Arizona
 - No apartment buildings should be built in this neighborhood.
- Chris Foltz -17917 Sanoque Gilbert Arizona
 - Opposed
- Ted Cesarano 17646 E Bronco Dr queen Creek
 - Opposed
- Steve Davis 4597 e blue spruce In Gilbert, AZ
 - Opposed
- Daniel Stevens 22915 S 180th st.
 - Opposed
- Wane Norlie 4695 E NARROWLEAF DR Gilbert
 - I am a member of the Trilogy at Power Ranch Community Association, on behalf of the residents. The Association is opposed to the construction of the 3-story multifamily units bring proposed. They will diminish the lifestyle of our residents.
- Ashton Flake 22505 S 179th Way Gilbert,
 - Do you have to try to build houses and apartments on every last piece of agricultural land? Can't we just let one single thing NOT be turned into for-profit housing?? When I moved here everything was untouched and now there is barely any empty land left.
- Debbie Barber 23020 S. 182nd Street Gilbert
 - o Opposed
- Tyler flake 22505 s 179th way Gilbert
 - o The MDR is not safe due to that area previously having a wash run through it
- Mark Dahlstrom 3403 Valley Drive Bismark north Dakota opposed
- Steve Chandler 22815 s.180thst. Gilbert
 - why widen brooks farm rd. it's a dead end street, traffic in a rural setting will be confusing and disturbing
- Bethany Schroeder 22620 S 178th PI Gilbert opposed

Submitted cards but did not provide addresses

- Frank Infurna opposed
- Shannon Bennett did not provide addresss
 - Not in favor of MDR: Spot zoning and is not consistent with the rural feel of this area - Unsafe streets. Can't handle the current traffic; aren't wide enough. -School capacity and traffic - Quality of life - Apartments bring crime
- Greg Gordon did not provide address
 - Does not match the surrounding neighborhoods
- Cashell Southwick did not provide address
 - We adamantly oppose the proposal. We do NOT want apartment or condo style homes destroying our property values and bringing crime to the area like the Power Ranch development. We also have a water shortage and this greatly increases households & demand.
- Karla Spencer
 - No MDR
- Ashlyn Stevens opposed
- Cara Wecott I do not support the rezoning plans for Sossaman Farms West (Power and Ocotillo Roads in Gilbert/Queen Creek, Arizona)
- Trudy Jones No address
 - Opposed
- Karsten Flake Opposed

No address in favor

- Travis Tomachoff
- Stephen Burris

Comments submitted to the publiccomment@queencreek.org email address

- Sara Hoover 393 E Sourwood Dr Gilbert, Arizona
 - I am writing to voice my strong opposition to the proposed change of plan for the lot at ocotillo and power from residential homes to apartments. Not only will this wreak havoc on traffic inthe area, it will negatively impact home values in the surrounding neighborhoods. Please do not allow this change to happen. Keep queen creek true to its roots and do not createanother cookie cutter suburb. Queen creek has some unique characteristics that draws people to it. Building apartments at this location will take away from what makes queen creek, queen creek. Thank you, Sara Hoover
- Sue Grecco 5088 S Wade Dr Gilbert
 - To whom it may concern, Currently, approximately 42 houses use 180th Street as an entry and exit point. Approximately 26 homes use 182ndStreet as an entry and exit point. Bringing the total to approximately 68 houses using Brooks Farm as an entry and exitpoint. The rezoning plans will make these roads entry and

exit points for an additional 540-637 homes/residences. Our roads are not designed to handle this level of traffic. You can't fit two cars on 180th. Please do not allow these roads to have this much traffic!

- Tony La Roche 4672 E Blue Spruce Ln Gilbert, AZ 85298
 - I recently saw the updated material (after the first public review) on the Sossaman FarmWest rezoning request - very disappointed. First, I live in Trilogy and there were many concerns raised about the increased traffic and noise, as well as the requested change from currently all residential (R1-9 to R1-43) to MUCH higher density including MDR(apartments) and C-1 (commercial). When Trilogy residents purchased their properties they had a view of the mountains, and the property across Ocotillo was zoned ALL residential.

There are NO changes from the original rezoning request for the property directly across from Trilogy - STILL MDR and C1. So the input from Trilogy residents was totally ignored. From what I can tell, the only changes are lower density residential on the south and west sides of the property which doesn't address any of our original concerns.

PLEASE keep the property ALL residential. Some of Trilogy residents paid premiums for their lots with the view of the mountains, and the fact that the property was zoned residential (built out in 2006). No one expected that the property would remain undeveloped for ever, but NO ONE expected to get Commercial and Apartments on the property. Thank you for your consideration

Cara Wescott

 This is in response to the Sossaman Farms West (Power and Ocotillollo) rezoning request. I am very concerned with the re-zoning plans due to the negative impact that it will have on the current residents' safety and way of life.

The entry and exit points for Sossaman Farms West area require the use of the roads on our property. Currently, approximately 42 houses use 180th Street as an entry and exit point. An addional approximate 26 homes use 182nd Street as an entry and exit point. Bringing the total to approximately 68 houses using Brooks Farm as an entry and exit point. These roads are not designed to accommodate the level of traffic that the re-zoning plans would create. The rezoning plans will make these roads entry and exit points for an additional approximately 540-637 homes/residences. Currently, 180th Street is not wide enough for two cars to pass each other. There are power poles in the way. One car has to pull off to the side of the road to allow the other to pass. It is not safe to add that many cars to roads that were not designed for that level of traffic.

The current zoning is similar to the zoning of the surrounding area. This allows our residents to continue their way of life. The current residents chose to live here because of the horse property. People like to ride their horses through our neighborhood. This will no longer be possible with the amount of traffic created in

there-zoning plans. The equestrian way of life is Queen Creek's history and is what makes it unique. The re-zoning plans will destroy the equestrian way of life in our community.

Please do not make this decision lightly. The re-zoning of Sossaman Farms West will have a detrimental effect on our safety and way of life.

Thank you for taking the me to listen to the concerns of myself and my neighbors.

• Comment from Joe Marcin – Resident - Trilogy at Power Ranch

Due to a prior commitment I am not able to participate in the web based public hearing today. Therefore I am submitting comments (see below) regarding this recent proposal of the rezoning request of the Sossaman West Development submitted to the Town of Queen Creek by Pew& Lake. In addition to the comments below, I previously submitted comments to the Town of the past 2 proposals and respectfully request they be added to the record for this public hearing as well.

Comments:

- 1. The minor changes of this recent proposal of the Sossaman West rezoning and development project has not addressed the major concerns of the surrounding residents. At each informational meeting, residents overwhelmingly voiced opposition to rezone this property to include commercial businesses and multi-unit apartment buildings for a variety of reasons; excessive noise, traffic, privacy, night time lighting and other nuisances that would negatively impact their quality of life. Most importantly, all residents were strongly opposed to apartment buildings, especially 3 story high buildings, as this "urban" multi-housing type does not conform to the composition and character of the surrounding neighborhoods. After 3 informational meetings, the applicant continues to ignore the concerns of the surrounding communities and has offered no changes to the plan that would eliminate commercial businesses and more importantly apartment buildings to justify rezoning this property as proposed. Therefore the request to rezone this property must be denied.
- 2. The applicant also failed to show that the current zoning designation of this property was originally determined in error in 1999 by the Town of Queen Creek. At that time, surrounding properties zoned residential were being developed adjacent to this owner's property and therefore the zoning for this property was applicable and complementary to surrounding developments. In addition, the applicant has not demonstrated that the property as currently zoned, has created a hardship that prevents the property owner the opportunity to develop this property. The current zoning for this property provides numerous options (including current agricultural farming) for the owner to develop a residential community with 4 different residential zoned designations (R1-9, R1-12, R1-35)

and R1-43) and suggested options that would provide housing for a variety of potential buyers and would also conform to the overall composition and characteristic of the surrounding communities. Proposed ideas voiced during the past 2 information meetings and submitted to the Town by surrounding residents would be to allow rezoning of portions of the owner's property to increase the number of housing units/acre in lieu of apartment style buildings. This suggestion was overwhelmingly supported by residents of surrounding communities and would provide considerable benefit to the property owner while maintaining a rural housing environment as originally intended by the Town of Queen Creek. Given the recent development of single family housing communities within a 5 mile radius of this property, this current zoning designation was and still is the proper designation for this property. Development of "Urban" style apartment buildings is not practical in a "rural" setting and should not be permitted. Apartment building neighborhoods do not exist in proximity to the adjacent housing communities. Therefore, there is no justification to rezone this property as currently proposed by the applicant.

3. The most important requirements when determining a rezoning approval are:

Will the current zoning prevent beneficial use and development of the property by a property owner? The current zoning designation DOES NOT prevent beneficial development or use by the property owner. However, residents stated they would accept residential rezoning of the property to increase the number of single family units/acre and eliminate the proposed apartment buildings giving the property owner additional development options and benefits.

Will the proposed rezone create adverse impacts to surrounding communities and residents caused by the rezoning? Absolutely, excessive noise, traffic, privacy, nighttime lighting from commercial business operations and apartment building units will be created. This will significantly impact the quality of life for residents.

Is the rezoning compatible with the adjacent neighborhood, especially residential neighborhood stability and character? The proposed rezoning and development DOES NOT conform in composition and character of surrounding neighborhoods.

The current Sossaman West rezoning and development proposal as it currently stands does not satisfy these 3 important rezoning requirements, therefore the rezoning application must be denied.

I sincerely hope that suggested changes expressed by residents at the 3 informational meetings to the proposed development plan can be made that will benefit both the individual property owner as well as preserve the investment and quality of life for the thousands of residential property owners in the neighborhoods adjacent to this proposed development. Thank you for your consideration.

Respectfully Submitted,

Joe Marcin Resident - Trilogy at Power Ranch